
UNITED NATIONS

General Assembly
FORTY-EIGHTH SESSION

Official Records

SIXTH COMMITTEE
35th meeting

held on
Tuesday, 23 November 1993

at 10 a.m.
New York

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 35th MEETING

Chairman : Mrs. FLORES (Uruguay)

CONTENTS

AGENDA ITEM 145: REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON RELATIONS WITH THE HOST COUNTRY

AGENDA ITEM 141: PROGRESSIVE DEVELOPMENT OF THE PRINCIPLES AND NORMS OF
INTERNATIONAL LAW RELATING TO THE NEW INTERNATIONAL ECONOMIC ORDER (continued)

AGENDA ITEM 152: QUESTION OF RESPONSIBILITY FOR ATTACKS ON UNITED NATIONS AND
ASSOCIATED PERSONNEL AND MEASURES TO ENSURE THAT THOSE RESPONSIBLE FOR SUCH
ATTACKS ARE BROUGHT TO JUSTICE (continued)

This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be sent under the signature of a member of the
delegation concernedwithin one week of the date of the publicationto the Chief of the Official Records
Editing Section, room DC2-794, 2 United Nations Plaza, and incorporated in a copy of the record.

Corrections will be issued after the end of the session, in a separate corrigendum for each Committee.

Distr. GENERAL
A/C.6/48/SR.35
1 February 1994
ENGLISH
ORIGINAL: SPANISH

93-82630 (E) /...



A/C.6/48/SR.35
English
Page 2

The meeting was called to order at 10.35 a.m .

AGENDA ITEM 145: REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON RELATIONS WITH THE HOST COUNTRY
(A/48/26)

1. Mr. SHAMBOS (Chairman of the Committee on Relations with the Host Country),
introducing the Committee’s report (A/48/26), said that the document followed
the format used in previous years. Thus, it consisted of four sections, the
last of which contained the Committee’s recommendations and conclusions. In his
view, the Committee continued to be an important forum in which Member States
had the opportunity to resolve, through frank and constructive debate, problems
related to the functioning of their permanent missions. He reiterated his
thanks to the Committee members, the Host Country Section of the United States
Mission to the United Nations, and the New York City Commission for the United
Nations, Consular Corps and International Business for their support and
cooperation.

2. Mr. AHMED (Iraq) said that, although much time had passed since the events
of August 1990, the Permanent Mission of Iraq to the United Nations and its
staff were still facing difficulties as a result of the arbitrary procedures
applied by the host country. Among those measures was the freezing of Iraqi
assets, including those allocated for the purpose of meeting the current
expenses of the Mission, such as rents, staff salaries and payments for other
services.

3. That was a matter of great concern to Iraq because, despite the
well-founded arguments it had presented to the host country, that country was
refusing to release the funds; its representative limited himself to asserting
that freezing the assets was in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of
the United Nations and the Security Council resolutions relating to the economic
sanctions imposed on Iraq. His delegation wished to remind the Committee
members that neither the resolutions adopted by the Security Council in 1990 nor
its resolution 647 (1991) had made any reference to property of the Permanent
Mission of Iraq. Properties of permanent missions to the United Nations enjoyed
immunity by virtue of the Headquarters Agreement and other international legal
instruments by which the host country was bound. The measures taken by the
United States authorities in application of its national legislation could not
under any circumstances take precedence over the Headquarters Agreement and
international conventions.

4. His delegation therefore hoped that the sum of one million dollars,
belonging to the Permanent Mission and transferred to the Bank of New York by
the Central Bank of Iraq, would be unfrozen as rapidly as possible. Those funds
were intended to pay the current expenses of the Permanent Mission of Iraq in
New York and there was no reason for the United States authorities to be
concerned that they might be used for other purposes.

/...



A/C.6/48/SR.35
English
Page 3

5. In conclusion, he expressed his satisfaction at the lifting of travel and
other restrictions referred to in the report and said his delegation was
confident that the Committee could resolve pending problems in accordance with
international law.

6. Mr. DEREYMAEKER (Belgium), speaking on behalf of the European Union, said
that the work carried out by the Committee on Relations with the Host Country
demonstrated once again its ability to deal with difficult issues falling within
its competence and to resolve practical problems in accordance with the
applicable legal norms. Those positive results had been the result also of
efforts by other bodies which had provided valuable services to the diplomatic
community in New York, in particular the Permanent Mission of the United States
to the United Nations and the New York City Commission for the United Nations
and the Consular Corps.

7. The report of the Committee on Relations with the Host Country (A/48/26)
provided a detailed description of the matters considered in 1993. With regard
to the security of missions and the safety of their personnel, he welcomed the
dialogue maintained between the United Nations and the local authorities, which
had made possible the application of measures whose scope went beyond the limits
of the Headquarters administrative district. He also welcomed the organization
of the seminar entitled "Survival in New York", held at Headquarters on
13 May 1993.

8. A substantial part of the Committee’s report was concerned with the
responsibilities of the permanent missions and their personnel, especially in
terms of financial obligations. Failure to pay a debt on the part of a
diplomat, a diplomatic mission or a United Nations staff member was certainly a
serious problem, since the maintenance of harmonious relations with the
inhabitants and authorities of the host country required strict compliance with
all financial obligations. Nevertheless, that should not exclude the
possibility of special measures in clear cases of humanitarian need. In that
connection, the European Union encouraged the Working Group on Indebtedness to
continue its work with a view to finding appropriate solutions, perhaps by
establishing a trust fund.

9. With regard to transportation, he reminded the Committee of the importance
the European Union attached to the application of articles IV and V of the
Headquarters Agreement and articles 29 to 31 of the 1961 Vienna Convention. It
was to be hoped that the host country would adopt such measures as were
necessary to meet fully the obligations it had undertaken in that respect.

10. In conclusion, he noted that the European Union supported the Committee’s
recommendations and conclusions as presented in paragraph 58 of its report.

11. Mr. ORDZHONIKIDZE (Russian Federation) said that the Committee on Relations
with the Host Country had been established over 20 years earlier and during that
time had been an active mediator, striving to solve problems affecting the
missions of Member States. In essence, its objective had always been to bring
about conditions favourable to the normal functioning of the United Nations and
the permanent missions accredited to the Organization. It was therefore

/...



A/C.6/48/SR.35
English
Page 4

(Mr. Ordzhonikidze, Russian Federation )

important that the Committee should continue to concentrate on solving practical
problems, as they arose, in a spirit of harmony and by means of international
cooperation. Moreover, the currently prevailing climate of mutual understanding
would not have been possible without the positive attitude shown by both the
diplomatic corps in New York and the authorities of the host country.

12. In that connection, he expressed his gratitude to the New York City
Commission for the United Nations and the Consular Corps, the permanent missions
of Member States and the competent United States authorities for their efforts
to solve problems. If the current orientation continued, those efforts would no
doubt help to create a more favourable public image of the Organization.

13. The Committee’s vast programme traditionally included very diverse human
relations issues. In some cases, for example those concerning the protection of
permanent missions and their staff, the solution of delicate problems connected
with indebtedness, and the lifting of certain travel restrictions, the measures
taken had been positive. Other matters remained unresolved. Noteworthy among
them was the lifting of travel restrictions for the diplomatic staff of various
Member States and some Secretariat staff, the granting of multiple-entry visas,
the establishment of special lines for diplomats at Kennedy Airport and the
simplification of customs and immigration procedures. His delegation hoped that
those questions would be treated with the same constructive spirit that
currently prevailed and in accordance with the norms of international law. For
their part, the diplomats accredited to the United Nations must show strict
respect for the laws and traditions of the host country.

14. His delegation endorsed the recommendations and conclusions of the
Committee contained in the final section of its report (A/48/26). In that
connection, it attached particular importance to rationalization of the
Committee’s work.

15. Mr. RIVERO (Cuba) said that his delegation had studied with interest the
report of the Committee on Relations with the Host Country (A/48/26), which
described very clearly the important activities recently carried out by that
Committee. Cuba fully supported its work and considered that it should not be
affected in any way by the rationalization and restructuring measures being
carried out within the United Nations.

16. His delegation supported the recommendations and conclusions contained in
the Committee’s report, in particular the ideas contained in subparagraphs (b)
and (c) of paragraph 58. As far as Cuba itself was concerned, over the
preceding months there had been repeated so-called "demonstrations" near the
premises of its Permanent Mission, which had in fact been acts involving
harassment, provocation and even threats against Cuban diplomats and their
families, including children (see A/48/26, para. 20). Those acts, which had
been brought to the attention of the host country and the Committee, had had an
unquestionable effect on the normal activities of the Permanent Mission of Cuba
to the United Nations and had also affected the safety of its staff. His
delegation trusted that the host country authorities, in compliance with their

/...



A/C.6/48/SR.35
English
Page 5

(Mr. Rivero, Cuba )

obligations and on the basis of the Committee’s recommendations, would adopt
appropriate measures to bring an end to the situation.

17. Mr. ROSENSTOCK (United States of America) said that his country would
continue to comply with the obligations incumbent upon it as host country. With
regard to the freezing of assets, that had been done in conformity with Security
Council resolutions and the situation would not change until the activity which
had prompted their adoption ceased. In no case and at no time had the
activities of any mission been impeded.

18. Concerning the problems which might have been caused by some
demonstrations, a phenomenon inherent in a free and open society in which
freedom of opinion and association were respected, there did not seem to be a
significant current of opinion within the United Nations in favour of
restricting those rights. His delegation had met with representatives of the
mission concerned and after looking at the available information had decided
that its activities had not been obstructed. In case any incident did occur the
missions concerned should communicate the facts to the host country as soon as
possible with a view to solving the problems which might arise. He was
convinced that there were very few problems that could not be resolved with
goodwill. The United States would continue to work at the bilateral level, as
well as in the Committee on Relations with the Host Country, with missions which
encountered, or believed they had encountered, difficulties.

19. Mr. RIVERO (Cuba) said that his delegation welcomed the statement made by
the representative of the host country to the effect that that country would
continue to comply with its obligations and would take full account of the
Committee’s recommendations, particularly those regarding the problems affecting
the Cuban mission. It should be noted that his delegation had not proposed
restricting the right to freedom of expression in any way; its request related
not to political opinions, but to the threatening way in which they were
expressed.

20. The CHAIRMAN said that the Committee had concluded its debate on agenda
item 145.

AGENDA ITEM 141: PROGRESSIVE DEVELOPMENT OF THE PRINCIPLES AND NORMS OF
INTERNATIONAL LAW RELATING TO THE NEW INTERNATIONAL ECONOMIC ORDER (continued)
(A/48/268)

21. Mr. AL-SUWAIDI (United Arab Emirates), speaking in his capacity as Chairman
of the Working Group set up under resolution 46/52, said that the Working Group
had considered the report of the Secretary-General (A/48/268) at its meeting of
17 November 1993. Several delegations had recognized the need to elaborate
norms and principles relating to a new international economic order and had
observed that they could take the form of rules applicable to specific areas of
economic activity or of general principles, non-binding in nature.
Nevertheless, some of those delegations had considered that in order to reach a
consensus on the question, States and international organizations needed more
time to think about the most recent developments in the field, especially since

/...



A/C.6/48/SR.35
English
Page 6

(Mr. Al-Suwaidi, United Arab Emirates )

it would be necessary to consider the item on the basis of a new document which
might be based on a re-examination of the study by the United Nations Institute
for Training and Research contained in annex III to document A/39/504/Add.1.
Other delegations had expressed the view that while that study might be useful
there should be a completely new approach and the item should therefore remain
on the agenda of the General Assembly, which would facilitate preparation of the
document in two or three years. However, other delegations had emphasized that
the item had been put on the General Assembly’s agenda at a time of economic
confrontation. There was currently a new and flexible approach. In addition,
there was no consensus on the need to proceed with substantive work on the
topic. In those circumstances it would be difficult for a working group to do
any useful work to that end. They had therefore proposed that the item should
be removed from the agenda.

22. During the discussions further proposals had been made, some of which had
been supported within the Working Group, in particular the proposal that
consideration of the item should be deferred for a reasonable period so that
Governments and international organizations could reflect on a new document
which would be a basis for further discussion of the subject. In that
connection, there had been general agreement that if the item could be
reformulated in a way which addressed the principles of international economic
relations in the context of international economic cooperation and development,
it might be possible to retain it on the agenda of the General Assembly.

23. The CHAIRMAN said that the Committee had concluded its debate on agenda
item 141.

AGENDA ITEM 152: QUESTION OF RESPONSIBILITY FOR ATTACKS ON UNITED NATIONS AND
ASSOCIATED PERSONNEL AND MEASURES TO ENSURE THAT THOSE RESPONSIBLE FOR SUCH
ATTACKS ARE BROUGHT TO JUSTICE (continued) (A/C.6/48/L.12)

24. Mr. van BOHEMEN (New Zealand), introducing draft resolution A/C.6/48/L.12,
said that the delegations of Argentina, Bulgaria, the Czech Republic, Ecuador,
Finland, Greece, Italy, the Netherlands, Nigeria and Romania had joined the list
of sponsors. The draft did not prejudge the nature of the instrument which
would be negotiated and reflected the consensus within the Working Group,
namely, that an ad hoc committee open to all Member States should be established
to elaborate an international convention dealing with the security of United
Nations and associated personnel, and should hold a session for two weeks in
March and April 1994 and possibly a further session of two weeks in August 1994.

The meeting rose at 11.35 a.m .

/...


